
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 6, 2019 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – MAY 6, 2019 

 
 

Board Room                Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

  

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal and Personnel Matters 
(SCHEDULED ONE-HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Yul Miller – Grace Fellowship 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 

1. Lebanon High School 
Averie Price - 2018-2019 2nd Team Group 2A VHSL All State Girls Basketball  
 

2. Honaker High School 
LeeAnna McNulty – 2019 VHSL All State Girls’ Basketball, Class 1, 1st Team 
Grayson Honaker – 2019 VHSL All State Boys’ Basketball, Class 1, 2nd Team 
 

3. Castlewood High School 
Gunnar Jessee & Casey Bush – 1st Place - Broadcast Journalism 
Layne Bush & Lauren Johnson – 1st Place - Business Financial Plan 
Abby Baker & Savannah Meade – 1st Place - 3D Animations 
Breann Long & Zoe Phillips – 1st Place - PSA 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 6, 2019 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

Katrina Hughes & Nicholas Deboard – 1st Place - Intro to Business Presentation 
Makayla Taylor & Brooke Traverse – 1st Place – Social Media 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. VDOT Six-Year Secondary Construction Plan (SSYP) 
2. RC PSA & CWSA Articles of Incorporation & Joinder Agreement 
3. CPWMA Articles of Incorporation 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Jack Hinshelwood – Crooked Road Waysides Presentation……………………A-1 
 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
RC Public Service Authority 
 
District 1  District 2 
District 3  District 4 
District 5  District 6 
At-Large 
 
RC Department of Social Services 
 
Judy Lockridge (Resigned) 4-Year Term 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of April 1, 2019 
b. Unapproved minutes of April 24, 2019 
c. Unapproved minutes of April 29, 2019           

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. RC PSA & CWSA Articles of Incorporation & Joinder Agreement 
2. CPWMA Articles of Incorporation  

 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 6, 2019 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. APA 2018 Financial Assessment Model (FAM)…………………………………….D-1 
 

2. CPWMA FY19/20 Budget Report………………………………………………………D-2 
 

3. VDOT FY 21/22 Revenue Sharing Program………………………………………....D-3 
 

4. 2019 VDOT Bristol District Locally Administered Program Day………………...D-4 
 

5. 2019 Virginia Telecommunications Initiative Grant………………………………..D-5 
 

6. RC School Energy Performance Project……………………………………………..D-6  
 

7. Senator Tim Kaine & RC BOS Substance Use Disorder Roundtable…………..D-7 
 

8. UVA-Wise 2019 SWVA Economic Forum (5/15/19)………..…………………….....D-8 
 

9. Buchanan County BOS Economic Development Summit (4/16/19)………….....D-9 
 

10. SWCC Spring Commencement Exercise (5/10/19)…………………………………D-10 
 

11. Cleveland Ballpark “Kids Fun Day” Event (5/18/19)……………………………….D-11 
 

12. Clinch River Festival (5/30/19 – 6/1/19)……………………………………………….D-12 
 

13. RC Public Library Appreciation Letter………………………………………………..D-13 
 

14. Town of Lebanon Appreciation Letter………………………………………………..D-14 
 

REQUESTS 
  

15. Authorization of VDOT Six-Year Secondary Construction Plan (SSYP) 
Resolution………………………………………………………………………..……….D-15 
 

16. Authorization of Travel Requests…………………………………………………….D-16 
 

1. Brian Ferguson – VRA Conference – Disposal Waste – Grant Funded 
2. Gwyn Nash – Victim Witness – Grant Funded 
3. Kim Short – Tourism – Scholarship Funded  
4. Diana Shorter – VREO Certification  
5. Yvonne Cook – Election Security Training  

 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 6, 2019 
 

Russell County Page 4 
 

 
MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism………………………………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N  



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal and Personnel Matters 
pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A) (1), (3), (7), (8). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________  

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Harry Ferguson - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors Information Item 
137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

 Meeting:    5/6/19    6:00 PM 
 

 
Acknowledgements 
 

1. Lebanon High School 
Averie Price - 2018-2019 2nd Team Group 2A VHSL All State Girls Basketball  
 

2. Honaker High School 
LeeAnna McNulty – 2019 VHSL All State Girls’ Basketball, Class 1, 1st Team 
Grayson Honaker – 2019 VHSL All State Boys’ Basketball, Class 1, 2nd Team 
 

3. Castlewood High School 
Gunnar Jessee & Casey Bush – 1st Place - Broadcast Journalism 
Layne Bush & Lauren Johnson – 1st Place - Business Financial Plan 
Abby Baker & Savannah Meade – 1st Place - 3D Animations 
Breann Long & Zoe Phillips – 1st Place - PSA 
Katrina Hughes & Nicholas Deboard – 1st Place - Intro to Business Presentation 
Makayla Taylor & Brooke Traverse – 1st Place – Social Media 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Awardees 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mrs. Lila Jenkins, Principal Mr. Jarrod Sparks, Assistant Principal 
 

Castlewood High School  
304 Blue Devil Circle 

Castlewood, Virginia 24224  

Sherry Allen, Adviser 
Connie Crabtree, Adviser 

(276) 762-9449 Phone Home of the Castlewood Blue Devils (276) 762-9418 Fax 
 
May 2, 2019  
 
 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
c/o Mrs. Loretta Vance 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 
Russell County Board of Supervisors: 
 
We are proud to tell you that the Castlewood High 
Chapter of Future Business Leaders of America has 
had an amazing experience this school year!  
 
Students have worked with business partners, 
donated their time to community service events, 
and toured the nation’s capital.  Eighteen first and 
second place winners qualified for national 
competition. Listed below are the students that will be competing at the 2019 National Leadership Conference in San 
Antonio, Texas June 28-July 3, 2019. Please consider sponsoring a Castlewood High School FBLA student by 
making a tax deductible donation to a specific competitor or a donation to be divided between all competitors.  
Or, can you help us by providing opportunities for our students to earn money to assist with their expenses? 
 
Broadcast Journalism ........................................................................ 1st Place (Gunnar Jessee and CaseyBush) 
Business Financial Plan ................................................................. 1st Place (Layne Bush and Lauren Johnson) 
3D Animations .............................................................................. 1st Place (Abby Baker and Savannah Meade) 
PSA ....................................................................................................... 1st Place (Breann Long and Zoe Phillips) 
Introduction to Business Presentation ............................... 1st Place (Katrina Hughes and Nicholas Deboard) 
Social Media .......................................................................... 1st Place (Makayla Taylor and Brooke Traverse) 
Graphic Design ............................................................................ 2nd Place (Rilee Barnette and Dylan Mullins) 
American Enterprise ............................................................................... 2nd Place (Josh Hall and Hunter Hill) 
Business Ethics ...................................................................... 2nd Place (Cole Jessee and Montana Sutherland) 
Community Service ........................................................................... 2nd Place (Breann Long, and Zoe Phillips) 

 
Any money raised during the fundraising process for this conference, over and above the $975.75 for registration, 
travel, and lodging, will be used to assist with student meals. 
 
Checks should be made payable to Castlewood High School. Donations can be mailed to Castlewood High School, 
Attention FBLA, 304 Blue Devil Circle, Castlewood, Virginia 24224. Donations may also be given to competitors 
for delivery to school, or advisers will gladly pick up donations. If you need more details, please contact me at 276-
365-2827 or Connie Crabtree at 276-701-1484 or contact Castlewood High School. Thank you for your 
consideration in helping make this experience possible for our students! 
 
Sincerely, 

Sherry Allen 
Sherry Allen, FBLA Adviser 

Castlewood High FBLA State Recognitions: Seven 1st Place Awards, Four 2nd 
Place Awards, Three 3rd Place Awards, One 5th Place Award, and an 
Honorable Mention. The Castlewood High Chapter was named a Virginia 
Honor Chapter and the 4th Most Outstanding Chapter in the State of Virginia. 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 5/6/19     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 
1. VDOT Six-Year Secondary Construction Plan (SSYP) 
2. RC PSA & CWSA Articles of Incorporation & Joinder Agreement 
3. CPWMA Articles of Incorporation  

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Resolution  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

Public Hearing Notice 
 

The Virginia Department of Transportation and the 
Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in accordance 
with Section 33.1-70.01 of the Code of Virginia, will 
conduct a joint public hearing in the Board Meeting 
Room of the Russell County Government Center, 137 
Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 24266 at 6:15 p.m. 
on May 6, 2019.  The purpose of this public hearing 
is to receive public comment on the proposed 
Secondary Six-Year Plan for Fiscal Years 2019/20 
through 2025/26 in Russell County and on the 
Secondary System Construction Budget for Fiscal Year 
2019/20.  Copies of the proposed Plan and Budget 
may be reviewed at the Lebanon Residency Office of 
the Virginia Department of Transportation, located at 
1067 Fincastle Road, Lebanon, Virginia 24266 or at 
the Russell County offices located at 137 Highland 
Drive, Lebanon, Virginia 24266. 

 
All projects in the Secondary Six-Year Plan that are 
eligible for federal funds will be included in the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP), which documents how Virginia will obligate 
federal transportation funds. 
 
Persons requiring special assistance to attend and 
participate in this hearing should contact the Virginia 
Department of Transportation at (276) 889-7601.  
Persons wishing to speak at this public hearing should 
contact the Russell County Board of Supervisors at 
(276) 889-8000. 

 
 
  
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Harry Ferguson  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Monday, 
May 6, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the Russell County Public Service 
Authority (PSA) and Castlewood Water & Sewer Authority (CWSA) Resolution of Joinder. 

A copy of the proposed Resolution of Joinder is available for review in the Office of 
the County Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during normal 
business hours.   

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Government Conference 
Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, 
Virginia during the regular May monthly meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Harry Ferguson  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Monday, 
May 6, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning the Cumberland Plateau Regional 
Waste Management Authority Article of Incorporation.  

A copy of the proposed Resolution of Joinder is available for review in the Office of 
the County Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during normal 
business hours.   

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Government Conference 
Room at the Russell County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, 
Virginia during the regular May monthly meeting. 

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors Information Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 5/6/19           6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 

1. Jack Hinshelwood – Crooked Road Waysides Presentation……………………A-1 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5/1/2019

1

Presentation to 
Russell County 

Board of 
Supervisors

1



5/1/2019

2

Waysides

2

2



5/1/2019

3

Panels

3

3



5/1/2019

4

Panels

4

4



5/1/2019

5

Wayside Process

5

1) Field Research for Panel Copy & Radio Script

2)Secure Location

3) Fabricate Panels & Record Radio Broadcast

4)Erect Structure & Highway Signage

5)Ribbon Cutting

6)Include on Crooked Road website 

5



5/1/2019

6

6

The Crooked Road Website

6



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 5/6/19        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
 

RC Public Service Authority 
 
District 1  District 2 
District 3  District 4 
District 5  District 6 
At-Large 
 
RC Department of Social Services 
 
Judy Lockridge (Resigned) 4-Year Term 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  Board Discretion.  
SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Members.  





 
   

P.O. Box 2981 
Lebanon, VA 24266 
Cell: 276-698-9421 

Email: jelptmom@shentel.net 
EIN: 27-4669460 

Professional, Quality 
& 

Caring Services 

Easterly Lockridge, L.L.C. 

 

Date:  April 17, 2019 

 

RE:  Advisory Board Member for Russell County Social Services 

To Whom it May Concern; 

I reluctantly will need to resign as an Advisory Board Member for the Russell County Social 
Services.  Due to unexpected medical illness in my immediate family I will be out of town, 
unavailable for monthly meetings, and unable to participate on a consistent basis for 
consultation regarding this Advisory Position.  I am sorry this situation has occurred, but I feel it 
is most appropriate at this time to resign from my appointed position.  I appreciate your 
confidence in my ability to participate on this board, and hopefully I will be able to return in the 
future.  This resignation is effective immediately.  If you have any questions, please do not 
hesitate to call me at 276-698-9421. 

Sincerely Yours, 

 

Judith E. Lockridge 

 

 







 
Board of Supervisors                           Action Item B-1 
137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting:  5/6/2019     6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of April 1, 2019 
• Unapproved minutes of April 24, 2019 

• Unapproved minutes of April 29, 2019  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



April 01, 2019 

The regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, April 01, 
2019 at 6:00 pm. at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.  An Executive (Closed) 
Session was held prior to the meeting at 5:00 pm. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Harry Ferguson 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Senator Ben Chafin, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to enter into (closed) executive session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
legal and personnel matters pursuant to 2.2-3712(A), (1), (3), (7) and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 



Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Harry Ferguson – AYE 
 

Invocation by Pastor Jacob Musick, Garden of Hope Church followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag. 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 

The vote was:  
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
The Board recognized the Honaker High School Scholastic Team Bowl as 2019 Class 1 State Champions 
and Honaker High School’s Chandler Hubbard as 2018 Class 1 All-State Football Team. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING CONTINUED ON THE SALE OF THE ELK GARDEN SCHOOL PROPERTY 
 
The Public Hearing on the Elk Garden School Property was resumed after being continued from last 
month.  The Chair opened the public hearing to comments. 
 
David Leonard and Brooke Atchley gave a brief history of the Elk Garden School and how the Holston 
Conference of the United Methodist Church and many other churches and volunteers are using to help 
the community.  They have a food pantry, cafeteria, a community garden, etc.  Mr. Leonard will be 
continuing the lease with the Holston Conference. 
 



 The public hearing was closed. 
 

APPROVAL TO SELL THE ELK GARDEN SCHOOL 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Harry Ferguson and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve the purchase of the Elk Garden School by David Leonard in the amount of $50,000 and to 
adhere to the terms discussed for this purchase. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Harry Ferguson, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Tim 
Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations 
 
Maddie Gordon, Director of the Center for Natural Capital gave an update on Stream Sweepers and all 
that has been accomplished to clean up the Clinch River.  She stated that they hope to have 10-12 more 
sweepers to help with the clean up this summer.  She asked for monetary support from the County and 
residents. 
 
Board Appointments 
 

BOBBIE GULLET, ARTHUR PHILLIPS AND WANDA OSBORNE RE-APPOINTED TO THE DANTE 
COMMUNITY CENTER 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to re-
appoint Bobbie Gullet, Arthur Phillips and Wanda Osborne to the Dante Community Center for (2) two-
year terms, said terms ending April 01, 2021. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 04, 2019 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to  
approve the March 04, 2019 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 14, 2019 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the March 14, 2019 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $ 445,834.13 including withholdings and reoccurring. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
Bob Gibson, Castlewood commented that the proposed construction of the Lebanon High School 
Football/Soccer field was very unfair to the rest of the County.  He was concerned about the 
deterioration and lack of athletic facilities at Castlewood High School in particular.  He asked that the 
Board remember the citizens in Castlewood. 
 
Gary Dotson, Castlewood stated that a letter sent out to Castlewood residents concerning the 
Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority was incorrect.  The letter reads as if he voted against a rate 
reduction.    He feels that it was a defamation of his character and wants the letter revised. 
 
Chase Campbell and Jessee Fields with Russell County Combined Search and Rescue asked that the 
Board include them in the new budget in the amount of $5000.00. He gave a summary of the equipment 
they have acquired and the rescues they have performed. 
 
Jonathan Taylor, Joey Long, Michael Webb, Brian Dillon, Audrey Dillon, Jessee Ball, Travis Hooker and 
Doug Howard all of which are parents, coaches and students gave opinions on why there is a need for a 
new football and soccer field in Lebanon. The old facility is not ADA approved, parking is a problem, the 
field is in rough shape, bleachers are deteriorating as well as many safety issues.  Each person asked that 
the Board consider appropriating the funds for the construction of new stadium. 
 
Oris Christian, Lebanon thinks that the old Lebanon football facility needs to be updated and renovated 
instead of building a new one.   He added that Lebanon and Castlewood should both be upgraded this 
year. 
 
Charles Hess, Lebanon supports the construction of a new football field project. 
 
The Chair closed citizens comment period. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 



Senator Ben Chafin, County Attorney asked that the Board consider holding public hearings on the 
CWSA and the CPRWMA articles of incorporation.  He also asked that the Chair be authorized to sign the 
necessary documents for a moral obligation to VCC. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON THE CWSA AND THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA JOINDER ARTICLES OF 
INCOPORPATION ON MAY 05, 2019 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing on the Articles of Incorporation for the Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority 
and the Russell County PSA Joinder on May 05, 2019 at 6:00pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON THE CPRWMA ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION ON MAY 05, 2019 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Harry Ferguson and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to hold a public hearing on the Articles of Incorporation for the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste 
Management Authority on May 05, 2019 at 6:00pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE THE CHAIR TO SIGN MORAL OBLIGATION DOCUMENTS TO THE VCC FOR 
PROJECT “BLUE-JAY” 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the Chairperson to sign the Moral Obligation documents for Virginia Community Capital 
concerning Project “Blue-Jay”. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

AUTHORIZAITON OF A CSA SUPPLEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $32,537.13 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a CSA supplement in the amount of $32,537.13. 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION OF A VDOT PUBLIC NOTICE TO ABANDON RT. 653 CREEKWOOD DRIVE 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a VDOT public notice to Abandon Rt. 653 Creekwood Drive. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
 
 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE GENERAL REGISTRAR 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the General Registrar. 
 
The vote was:  
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE COMMONWEALTH ATTORNEY 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the Commonwealth Attorney’s office. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE RUSSELL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the Russell County Public Library. 

The vote was:  
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE ASSESSOR’S OFFICE 
 



Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the Assessor’s Office. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FOR GENERAL DISTRICT COURT 
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from General District Court. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 

APRIL 2019 PROCLAIMED AS SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution proclaiming April 2019 as Sexual Assault Awareness Month. 

The vote was:  
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A BROWNSFIELD SITE GRANT 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a grant in the amount of $215,000 from the Virginia Brownsfield Restoration and Economic 
Redevelopment Assistance Fund. 
 

APPROVAL OF A GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $57,028 FORM DCJS 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a grant in the amount of $57,028 from the Department of Criminal Justice Services for violence 
against women. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE ON APRIL 24, 2019 AT 6:00 PM 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn to reconvene on April 24, 2019 at 6:00 pm. 
 



The vote was:  
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
 
___________________________                                                    _________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                               Chairperson 



April 24, 2019 

A reconvened meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Wednesday, April 24, 
2019 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting back to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Harry Ferguson 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 
Invocation by Chairperson Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL TO AMEND THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
amend the agenda with the addition of Executive (closed) Session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
  

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 



The Board discussed the Joinder Agreement between the Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority and 
the Russell County Public Service Authority and the Articles of Incorporation.  A discussion was also held 
on the Articles of Incorporation of the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority. 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to enter into (closed) executive session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
legal, contractual and prospective business matters pursuant to 2.2-3712(A), (3), (7) and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

CERTIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Harry Ferguson – AYE 



 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE ON MONDAY, APRIL 29, 2019 AT 6:00 PM 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn to reconvene on Monday, April 29, 2019 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________                      ___________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                 Chairperson 



April 29, 2019 

A reconvened meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, April 29, 2019 at 
6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Carl Rhea 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Harry Ferguson 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
 
Lou Wallace 
David Eaton 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Harry Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 
 
The Board discussed the Joinder and Articles of Incorporation for the Russell County Public Service 
Authority and the Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority. 
 
The Russell County PSA convened and joined the Board of Supervisors meeting.  
 Members present included:  Carter McGlothlin, Larry McGlothlin, Darryl Puckett, Jamie Kiser, Clifford 
Hess and Chris Dye. Harvey Hart, Chief Executive Officer was also present. 
 
APPROVAL OF A JOINDER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA AND THE CASTLEWOOD 

WATER AND SEWAGE AUTHORITY 
 
 Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adopt and approve the proposed Joinder Agreement Between the Board of Supervisors,  



The Russell County PSA and The Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority subject to approval of counsel 
in consultation with the Chairs of each Entity hereto with full authority for them to make suggested 
changes to the terms and conditions of said Agreement without the necessity of reconvening the full 
Boards. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Harry Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Harry Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________                                                         ____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                        Chairperson 
 
 
 



 
Board of Supervisors Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 5/6/19   6:00 PM 
  

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s April 2019 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s April 2019 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s April 2019 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• April 2019 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 5/6/19      6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
1. RCPSA & CWSA Public Hearing Resolution of Joinder (5/6/19)………………..C-1 

 
2. CPWMA User Article of Incorporation Public Hearing (5/6/19)………….………C-2 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Articles of Amendment of Russell County Public Service Authority 
Page 1 of 4 

 

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT OF  

THE RUSSELL COUNTY PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY 

 
 WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing for the purposes of approving this Articles 

of Amendment has been posted and published in the Lebanon News, a newspaper of 

general circulation in Russell County, Virginia, as required by Virginia Code; and  

 WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors (RCBOS) as the governing 

body of Russell County, Virginia, has determined that it is in the best interest of the 

citizens of the County to adopt certain amendments to the Articles of Incorporation of 

The Russell County Public Service Authority; and 

 WHEREFORE, after due consideration and in accordance with applicable 

Virginia law be it hereby RESOLVED by the RCBOS that the Articles of Amendment of 

the RCPSA (previously incorporated by the Virginia State Corporation Commission 

(SCC) as The Swords Creek Public Service Authority on April 4, 1986) be amended as 

follows: 

ARTICLE I 
 
 The current name of the Corporation is: THE RUSSELL COUNTY PUBLIC 

SERVICE AUTHORITY, whose name change from the Swords Creek Public Service 

Authority went into effect on July 22, 2003, by the issuance of a SCC Certificate of 

Amendment of the same date.   

 

 

 



Articles of Amendment of Russell County Public Service Authority 
Page 2 of 4 

ARTICLE II 

 The incorporating political subdivision for The Russell County Public Service 

Authority (RCPSA) is RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the 

Commonwealth of Virginia. 

ARTICLE III 

 Pursuant to Section 1.2-5110 of the Code of Virginia, of 1950, as amended, the 

RCBOS, the governing body of Russell County, Virginia, by resolution duly adopted on 

July 1, 2003, voted to increase the number of members of the RCPSA from five (5) to six 

(6), the number of members of the RCBOS at that time. 

ARTICLE IV 

 By resolution dated ____________________, the RCBOS voted to expand the 

number of RCPSA members to seven (7), the current number of members of the RCBOS, 

by appointing an interim RCPSA board as set forth in Article VI below. 

ARTICLE V 

 By resolution of joinder adopted on _______________ by the Castlewood Water 

and Sewage Authority, also located in Russell County, Virginia, and accepted and 

ratified by a joint meeting of the RCBOS and the board of directors of the RCPSA on 

_______________ all of the present and future water, sewer and related public services 

thereto provided by the aforesaid authorities and RCBOS were joined and consolidated 

and their respective assets related to such services, including real estate, and all related 

liabilities were assumed by the RCPSA to act as the sole agency for such services in 

Russell County, Virginia, including present and future inter-jurisdictional services, 

subject to approval of the application of joinder submitted to the SCC.  



Articles of Amendment of Russell County Public Service Authority 
Page 3 of 4 

ARTICLE VI 

 A recommended RCPSA board member who has been nominated by a 

RCBOS  Supervisor serving in the nominee’s specific Supervisor district shall reside in a 

household that uses all available RCPSA services and shall at all times be registered to 

vote in the Supervisor’s respective district as set forth below. The RCBOS at-large 

Supervisor shall likewise nominate a RCPSA board member from any of the below 

Supervisor districts and that RCPSA board member shall be a registered voter and may 

reside anywhere within Russell County in a household that uses all available RCPSA 

services .  Should the RCPSA candidate nominated by the moving Supervisor member 

fail to receive a majority vote of the RCBOS then the moving Supervisor member shall 

be allowed to nominate alternate RCPSA board member candidates until the vacancy is 

filled by majority vote of the RCBOS. The initial seven member membership of the 

interim RCPSA board of directors below was appointed by majority vote of the RCBOS 

on _________________ and their initial staggered terms drawn by lot are as follows: 

NAME    ADDRESS     TERMS 

________________________ 
District 1 
 
 
________________________ 
District 2 
 
________________________ 
District 3 
 
________________________ 
District 4 
 
________________________ 
District 5 



Articles of Amendment of Russell County Public Service Authority 
Page 4 of 4 

 
________________________ 
District 6 
 
________________________ 
At-Large 
 
 

The aforesaid RCPSA board members may succeed themselves upon majority vote of 

the RCBOS and they and their successors shall thereafter serve for terms not to exceed 

four years, or until their successors have been appointed.  The RCPSA board shall elect 

one of their number as chairman and one as vice-chairman and shall also elect a 

secretary and treasurer who need not be members of the RCPSA board. If the secretary 

or treasurer is not a RCPSA board member he or she shall reside in a household that 

uses all available RCPSA services, be a registered voter of Russell County, Virginia, and 

serve at-will.  The offices of secretary and treasurer may be combined. A majority of 

RCPSA members shall constitute a quorum and the vote of a majority of those members 

in attendance shall be necessary for any action taken by the RCPSA.   

ARTICLE VII  

                   The board members of the RCPSA may, with the written concurrence of the 

RCBOS, or shall on demand of the RCBOS, appoint a chief administrative or executive 

officer (CEO) to serve at the pleasure of the RCPSA and RCBOS boards.  The CEO shall 

execute and enforce the orders and resolutions adopted by the RCPSA and his or her 

duties shall be limited to the day to day operations of the RCPSA and shall not include 

any of the powers set forth in § 15.2-5114 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended.  

The CEO shall not be related to any immediate family member by blood or marriage of 



Articles of Amendment of Russell County Public Service Authority 
Page 5 of 4 

the RCPSA or the RCBOS board members. The term “immediate family members” shall 

be consistent with the definition set forth in the Code of Virginia.  

                                                               ARTICLE VIII 

            The RCPSA may maintain not more than two (2) operating checking accounts  

designated as: 1) General Operations and 2) Construction Account and RCPSA may 

maintain interest bearing Certificates of Deposit, provided however, that the RCPSA 

shall provide a full and complete quarterly accounting to the Russell County 

Administrator of all funds received from operations; all expenditures of operations; all 

monies generated by way of bond issues, grants, loans and/or loans; and timely 

provide lists of customers and customer delinquencies beginning with the first full 

quarter succeeding the approval of this Amended Articles by the SCC. 

                                                                  ARTICLE IX  

  The RCPSA shall comply with all aspects of the Virginia Public Procurement 

Act § 2.2-4300 et. seq. Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended. 

ARTICLE X 
 

The RCPSA shall repeal its current by-laws and adopt an updated version  

approved by RCBOS within sixty (60) days of the SCC’s approval of the application of  

the aforesaid joinder and these Articles of Amendment and such updated by-laws may  

only be amended by the majority vote of the RCBOS and the RCPSA. 
 

  

Dated: ______________________________ 

            _________________________________ 



Articles of Amendment of Russell County Public Service Authority 
Page 6 of 4 

            Chairman 
            Russell County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: _________________________________ 
      Clerk 
          Russell County Board of Supervisors  



 

 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

OF THE 

CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL WASTE MANAGEMENT 

AUTHORITY 

 

The Board of Supervisors of Buchanan County, Virginia, the Board of Supervisors 

of Dickenson County, Virginia and the Board of the Supervisors of Russell County, by 

concurrent resolutions, adopted the following Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of 

the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority, pursuant to the Virginia Water 

and Waste Authorities Act (Chapter 51, Title 15.2 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended) 

(“Act”). 

ARTICLE I 

 

The name of the Authority shall be the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management 

Authority and the address of its principal office is ______________________________________. 

ARTICLE II 

 

The names of the political subdivisions participating in the Cumberland Plateau 

Regional Waste Management Authority (the “Authority”) are Buchanan County, Virginia, 

Dickenson County, Virginia  and Russell County, Virginia  (collectively, the “Members”), each 

of which hereby acknowledges, covenants, and agrees that these Amended and Restated 

Articles of Incorporation shall not be further amended or changed without the express 

agreement of each of the governing bodies of each of the participating political subdivisions. 

ARTICLE III 

 

The powers of the Authority shall be exercised by a Board composed of seven 

(7) members, two (2) of whom shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors of 

Dickenson County; two (2) of whom shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors 

of Buchanan County; two (2) of whom shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors 



 

 

of Russell County; and one (1) of whom shall be designated as an at large member 

who shall be selected by each of the member Counties on a rotational basis, first 

being selected by Dickenson County, then by Russell County and then by Buchanan, 

with the same order of rotation for selection of the At Large member going forward .  

E a ch  A u t h o r i t y  B o a r d  m em b e r  s h a l l  b e  ap p o i n t ed  f o r  t e r m s  o f  f o u r  

( 4 )  ye a r s  e a ch ,  a n d  m em b e r s  m a y b e  r e ap p o i n t e d  t o  s u cc e ed  t h em s e l v e s .   

T h e  go v e r n i n g  b o d y o f  e a ch  o f  t h e  m em b e r  co u n t i e s  m a y a p p o i n t  an  

a l t e r n a t e  f o r  e ac h  A u t h o r i t y  B o a r d  m em b e r  ap p o i n t e d  b y  i t  w h o  m a y  a t t e n d  

m e e t i n g s  b u t  w h o  s h a l l  b e  en t i t l e d  t o  v o t e  o n l y  i n  t h e  ab s e n c e  o f  t h e  

ap p o i n t ed  m em b er .     

In  t h e  e v e n t  a n  ap p o i n t ed  A u t h o r i t y  Bo a r d  m em b er  d o e s  n o t  o r  i s  

u n a b l e  t o  co m p l e t e  t h e  t e r m  f o r  w h i ch  h e / s h e  i s  ap p o i n t ed ,  f o r  an y  r e a s o n ,  

t h e n  t h e  g o v e r n i n g  b o d y o f  t h e  j u r i s d i c t i o n  b y  w h i ch  s u ch  m e m b er  w as  

ap p o i n t ed  s h a l l  a p p o i n t  a n o t h e r  m em b e r  t o  f i l l  t h e  u n ex p i r ed  t e r m .  

T h e  n am es  an d  ad d r e s s e s  o f  t h e  n e w  A u t h o r i t y  B o a r d  m em b e r s ,  t h e  

l en g t h  o f  t h e i r  t e r m s ,  an d  t h e  ap p o i n t i n g  C o u n t y  i n  e ac h  ca s e  a r e  a s  

f o l l o w s :   

M em b e r                       A d d r e s s                            T e r m      

Dickenson County 

1) 

 

2) 

 

Member                                                             Address                                                    Term 



 

 

Dickenson County 

At Large member 

3)   

Russell County 

1) 

 

2) 

Buchanan County 

1) 

 

2)      

       The term of the new Authority Board members named above shall begin upon the issuance by 

the State Corporation Commission of a certificate approving these Amended Articles of 

Incorporations.  The current Authority Board members shall serve until the issuance of said 

certificate approving these Amended Articles of Incorporation.  Authority Board members shall hold 

office until their successors shall have been appointed and qualified.  Members of the respective 

governing bodies of each political subdivision may be appointed board members of the Authority, 

as may employees of each such political subdivision.  The term of any member who is a full-time 

salaried employee of an incorporating county shall terminate upon termination of employment unless 

specifically extended by the appointing county.  Members of the Authority Board may be 

compensated for their service in the manner provided by the Act, and such compensation is set at 

$200 per month if the board member attends the regular monthly meeting.  The amount of monthly 

compensation for Authority Board members may be changed by concurrent resolutions by all the 

governing bodies of the member political subdivisions.  Any board member who is also a full-time 



 

 

salaried employee of one of the member counties shall not be entitled to the $200 per month 

compensation unless the regular monthly Board meeting takes place outside of said county 

employees normal working hours.   All board members shall be reimbursed for their actual expenses 

incurred in the performance of their duties as board members of the Authority. 

       A member of the Authority Board may be removed by the appointing Board of Supervisors 

within its sole discretion when a majority of such Board of Supervisors rescinds such Authority 

Board member’s appointment. 

                                                            ARTICLE IV 

       The purpose for which the Authority is created are to acquire, purchase, lease as lessee, 

construct, reconstruct improve, extend, operate, maintain and finance a garbage and refuse collection 

and disposal system (as defined in the Act) within, without, or partly within and partly without the 

CPPDC area; and to otherwise have, possess, and exercise the powers granted by the Act specifically 

including the power to acquire, purchase, lease as lessee, construct, reconstruct, improve, extend, 

operate, maintain and finance a garbage and refuse recycling and/or energy recovery facility. 

       While the precise methods of garbage and refuse collection, disposal and recycling which the 

Authority will pursue may vary according to technological developments and the economics of 

alternative methods, the governing bodies of each member political subdivision find the inclusion of 

a preliminary estimate of capital costs, proposals for specific project or projects to be undertaken by 

the Authority and the preliminary estimates of initial rates for service to be impracticable. 

         The Authority shall have the power to contract with any member political subdivision, any 

sanitary district therein or any lawful authority therein to furnish garbage and refuse collection, 

disposal, and recycling services upon such terms as the Authority shall determine, and may, contract 

with other political subdivisions; however, the Authority shall not accept, collect, or dispose of any 

garbage or refuse from any political subdivision not a member of the CPPDC area.  With the approval 



 

 

of the respective political subdivisions and subject to relevant statutes of the Commonwealth of 

Virginia, the Authority may subcontract with public or private individuals, firms and corporations 

for the performance of all or any portion of the garbage and refuse collection, disposal and recycling 

services for which it has been created or for which it has contracted to perform. 

          The Authority may contract with any member political subdivision for the collection of 

garbage and refuse within such jurisdiction, as well as transporting the same to transfer stations, 

disposal sites, and/or recycling centers but may not provide such services to any customer within any 

political subdivision without a contract or agreement with such political subdivision. 

      The Authority may also own, construct, reconstruct, repair and maintain landfills, recycling 

facilities, energy recovery facilities, and other garbage and refuse handling, disposal or recycling 

facilities as may be deemed necessary or convenient in furtherance of its purpose.  Nothing herein 

shall be deemed to limit the Authority to any method of garbage and refuse collection, disposal or 

recycling.  The Authority may also contract with the Cumberland Plateau Planning District 

Commission to serve as the Authority’s administrative agent until such time as the Authority is 

adequately funded and able to employ a chief administrative or executive officer and necessary staff 

personnel.  Prior to employment of a chief administrative or executive officer the Executive Director 

of the CPPDC may serve as the chief administrative officer of the Authority.      

                                                                        ARTICLE V 

 

Should other political subdivisions petition to become members of the Authority, such petition 

shall be acted upon and be subject to the provisions of the Act. 

ARTICLE VI 

 

The Authority shall cause an annual audit of its books and records to be made by the 

State Auditor of Public Accounts or by an independent certified public accountant at the end of 



 

 

each fiscal year, a copy of which shall be provided to the governing body of each member political 

subdivision. 

The Authority shall have an existence of fifty (50) years from the date its Certificate of 

Incorporation is issued, subject to extension, as provided in the Act. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Board of Supervisors of Buchanan County, Virginia the 

Board of Supervisors of Dickenson County, and the Board of Supervisors of Russell 

County have caused these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to be executed in 

their respective names, and their respective seals have been affixed hereto and attested by 

the respective secretaries and clerks of each. 

BUCHANAN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

   By:  _______________________________________ 

           J. Carroll Branham, Chairman 

           Buchanan County, Va. Board of Supervisors    

 

  ATTEST: 

   

  ___________________________________________ 

  Robert Craig Horn 

  County Administrator  

                      

  APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

          

  _____________________________________ 

  Lawrence L. Moise III, Esq. 

  County Attorney for Buchanan County  

 

                                                DICKENSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS    

 

By: _________________________________________ 

         _______________________, Chairman,  



 

 

         Dickenson County Board of Supervisors  

  

   ATTEST: 

   ___________________________________     

   _________________ ,County Administrator                                                                               

 

   APPROVED TO AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

   ____________________________________ 

   Stephen Mullins, Esq. 

   County Attorney for Dickenson County   

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

   By:  _______________________________________ 

           __________________, Chairman 

           Russell County, Va. Board of Supervisors    

 

    ATTEST: 

 

    __________________________________________ 

    __________________________,County Administrator  

            

           

    APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

          

    ____________________________________ 

    Katherine Patton, Esq. 

    County Attorney for Russell County 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: 

AT LARGE: to- wit: 

 

       Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by J. Carroll Branham, Chairman of the 

Buchanan County, Va., Board of Supervisors, this _______day of __________2019, in Buchanan 

County, Va. 

 

                                                                 ________________________________________ 

                                                                                  NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: ___________________. 

My registration # is________________. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: 

AT LARGE: to-wit: 

 

        Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by Robert Craig Horn, County Administrator for 

Buchanan County, Va. this ________day of ___________2019, in Buchanan County, Va. 

 

                                                                 _______________________________________ 

                                                                                   NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: ____________________. 

My registration # is _________________. 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 

AT LARGE, to-wit: 

 

 Subscribed, and acknowledged before me, by Lawrence L. Moise III, County Attorney for 

Buchanan County this the _______ day of _____________, 2019, in Buchanan County, Virginia. 

 

                                                     ___________________________________ 

               NOTARY PUBLIC  

My registration # is _________________. 

My commission expires on ______________. 
                                                                        

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: 

AT LARGE: to-wit: 

 

       Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by ______________________, Chairman of the 

Dickenson County, Va., Board of Supervisors, this _______day of __________2019, in Dickenson 

County, Va. 

 

                                                                 ________________________________________ 

                                                                                        NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: ___________________. 

My registration # is________________. 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: 

AT LARGE: to-wit: 

 

        Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by_______________________, County 

Administrator for Dickenson County, Va. this ________day of ___________2019, in Dickenson 

County, Va. 

 

                                                                 ____________________________________ 

                                                                                          NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: ____________________. 

My registration # is _________________. 

        



 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 

AT LARGE, to-wit: 

 

 Subscribed, and acknowledged before me, by Stephen Mullins, Esq., County Attorney for 

Dickenson County this the _______ day of _____________, 2019, in Dickenson County, Virginia. 

 

                                                     ____________________________________ 

               NOTARY PUBLIC  

My registration # is _________________. 

My commission expires on ______________. 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: 

AT LARGE: to-wit: 

 

       Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by _____________________, Chairman of the 

Russell County, Va., Board of Supervisors, this _______day of __________2019, in Russell 

County, Va. 

 

                                                                 ______________________________________ 

                                                                                      NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: ___________________. 

My registration # is________________. 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA: 

AT LARGE: to-wit:  

 

        Subscribed and acknowledged to before me by_____________________, County 

Administrator for Russell County, Va. this ________day of ___________2019, in Russell County, 

Va. 

 

                                                                 ____________________________________ 

                                                                                         NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: ____________________. 

My registration # is _________________. 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, 

AT LARGE, to-wit: 

 

 Subscribed, and acknowledged before me, by Katherin Patton, Esq., County Attorney for 

Russell County this the _______ day of _____________, 2019, in Russell County, Virginia. 

 

                                                     ____________________________________ 

             NOTARY PUBLIC  

My registration # is _________________. 

My commission expires on ______________. 

 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-16 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 5/6/19     6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
 
REPORTS 

 
1. APA 2018 Financial Assessment Model (FAM)…………………………………….D-1 

 
2. CPWMA FY19/20 Budget Report………………………………………………………D-2 

 
3. VDOT FY 21/22 Revenue Sharing Program………………………………………....D-3 

 
4. 2019 VDOT Bristol District Locally Administered Program Day………………...D-4 

 
5. 2019 Virginia Telecommunications Initiative Grant………………………………..D-5 

 
6. RC School Energy Performance Project……………………………………………..D-6  

 
7. Senator Tim Kaine & RC BOS Substance Use Disorder Roundtable…………..D-7 

 
8. UVA-Wise 2019 SWVA Economic Forum (5/15/19)………..…………………….....D-8 

 
9. Buchanan County BOS Economic Development Summit (4/16/19)………….....D-9 

 
10. SWCC Spring Commencement Exercise (5/10/19)…………………………………D-10 

 
11. Cleveland Ballpark “Kids Fun Day” Event (5/18/19)……………………………….D-11 

 
12. Clinch River Festival (5/30/19 – 6/1/19)……………………………………………….D-12 

 
13. RC Public Library Appreciation Letter………………………………………………..D-13 

 
14. Town of Lebanon Appreciation Letter………………………………………………..D-14 

 
REQUESTS 

  
15. Authorization of VDOT Six-Year Secondary Construction Plan (SSYP) 

Resolution………………………………………………………………………..……….D-15 
16. Authorization of Travel Requests…………………………………………………….D-16 

 
1. Brian Ferguson – VRA Conference – Disposal Waste – Grant Funded 
2. Gwyn Nash – Victim Witness – Grant Funded 
3. Kim Short – Tourism – Scholarship Funded  
4. Diana Shorter – VREO Certification  
5. Yvonne Cook – Election Security Training  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): Various  



COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA 
Auditor of Pub/icAccounrs 

l\!anha S. Ma\Tedes, CPA 
Auditor of Public Accounts 

Rebecca Dye, Board of Supervisors Chairperson 
Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
County of Russell 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Dear Madam and Sir: 

April 30, 2019 

P.O. Box 1295 
Ridunond, Virginia 23 2 18 

(804)225-3350 

The 2017 Virginia Acts of Assembly (Chapter 836, Part 4-8.03) directs the Auditor of Public 
Accounts to establish a prioritized early warning system to identify poss ible local fiscal distress 
within localities across Virginia and monitor accordingly on an annual basis. During 2018, our 
office revised the criteria and made changes to the model we are using to make a preliminary 
determination of where our office will focus additional follow up with a locality that appears to 
show signs of potential fiscal distress. We are no longer using last year's Financial Assessment 
Model (FAM) score analysis for making this determination. The new model calcu lates twelve 
financial ratios using audited financial statement data, along with considering demographic and 
other external factors in an additional qualitative analysis. Based on our fina l analysis, each 
locality is then qualitatively identified into one of two categories: either identified as needing 
further follow up through our financial assessment questionnaire review process, or identified as 
not needing any further follow up. 

In our previous letter dated December 7, 2018, we notified your locality of our preliminary 
determination based on the ratio analysis using fiscal year 2017 audited financial statement data 
and our final qualitative analysis, and we requested your locality allow our office to perform 
further follow up through our review process. The cou nty completed our assessment 
questionnaire and provided our office additional information related to budget processes, debt, 
borrowing, expenses and payables, revenues and receivables, staffing, and other external 
variables. Additionally, our office had discussions with the county administrator to obtain further 
understanding of certain financial factors during the fiscal year 2017 impacting our ratio analysis, 
and the plans the county has in place to continue to move forward and improve its financial 
position. 

The primary objective of our follow up review with each loca lity ident ified is to determine 
whether a locality is experiencing a situation of fiscal distress that warrants further assistance or 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



intervention from the Commonwealth . Based on our review of the completed assessment 
questionnaire and information provided to our office, along with our discussions with your 
locality, we have concluded that the County of Russell does not appear to be in a situation of 
fiscal distress that would warrant assistance or intervention from the Commonwealth. 
Accordingly, we have determined that no further notification nor recommendation from the 
Auditor of Public Accounts to the locality, Governor, and the chairmen of the money committees 
is necessary. 

Thank you for the timeliness of your response to our inquiries and cooperation during our 
review. Please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Martha S. Mavredes 
Auditor of Public Accounts 

cc: Tim Lovelace, Board of Supervisors, District 1 
Lou Wallace, Board of Supervisors, District 2 
Carl Rhea, Board of Supervisors, District 3 
David Eaton, Board of Supervisors, District 4 
Steve Breeding, Board of Supervisors Vice Chairman, District 5 
Harry Ferguson, Board of Supervisors, At-Large 
A. Benton Chafin, Jr., Senator 
James W. Morefield, Delegate 
Todd E. Pillion, Delegate 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight











 

 

2019 VDOT BRISTOL DISTRICT  

LOCALLY ADMINISTERED PROGRAM DAY 

Please join VDOT Bristol District for a training day focused on aiding District localities in 

navigating the state and federal regulations for locally administered projects. Funding and 

project implementation tips, as well as lessons learned from District projects, will be 

presented along with how to avoid pitfalls that cause delays. Come share an opportunity to 

network with other localities and find ways that VDOT can assist local government’s 

successfully complete transportation projects. 

       
  WHEN:                Wednesday, May 8, 2019 

9:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. (Agenda to follow) 

At Lenowisco Planning District 
Commission.  

372 Technology Trail Lane, Suite 101 
Duffield, VA. 24244. 

      OR 

Thursday, May 9, 2019 

9:30 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.(Agenda to follow) 

At Holston Hills Community Golf Course 

1000 Country Club Rd. 

Marion, VA. 24354 
 

Presenters and invited attendees include: 

VDOT Bristol District & Central Office Staff. 

 
INTENDED AUDIENCE: Local administration and 

staff, locality procured consultants, and PDC staff 

involved with day to day project management, 

developing funding applications, or reimbursement 

requests and budget management. 

 
Business casual attire. Attendance is FREE. 

Breakfast, Lunch and snacks will be provided. 

 
 

To sign up for the program please register at the 

following link: Click here to register 

 

Registration deadline is Friday April 26, 2019. 

 
Due to space restrictions, registration is limited to 3 

per locality. Each locality may invite consultants 

and/or PDC staff as part of their allotment. 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/R32C9SW
http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj51s-mrcbhAhWDzlkKHa9kB_sQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=http://www.p3virginia.org/&psig=AOvVaw1ZzFagPsZKydYp-VoYBy-6&ust=1555014158351399




Notes to Servicing Records
(1) Credit payments acknowledged by IRS & received in Custodial Account.  Red indicates not yet rec'd

5,588,478.16$              266,118.01$              4.36% (2) Sequestration set for FY9/30/19 at 6.20%

1 2,895,313.31$           4/17/2017 (3) Before impact of Sequestration
21 10/1/2036 1,920,977.44$                     

4.60% 223,959.71$                        

1,680,945.34$                     

360

Interest Calculated Calculated  

Pmts Date Balance Principal Interest Using the Credit Rate Credit Payment* Date Amount Amount (2) Date Amount

-                                  -                                  *At 70% of Credit Rate

0 4/19/2017 5,588,478.16$              

1 10/1/2017 5,365,990.84$              222,487.32$                 115,681.50$                 109,645.94$              76,752.16$                          7/27/2017 76,752.16$                           71,456.26$                               9/20/2017 71,456.25$                         6.9%

2 5/21/2018 5,349,932.49$              16,058.35$                   -$                                -$                             -$                                      -$                                       -$                                           

3 10/1/2018 5,176,161.76$              173,770.73$                 246,096.89$                 233,257.06$              163,279.94$                       7/27/2018 163,279.94$                        152,503.46$                             9/4/2018 152,503.46                         6.6%

*Lesser of interest or calc CP

FIXED RATE BOND - DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Payments/Year
Total Payments

QECB Credit Payment Calculation

Total Interest
Maturity 

Amount

Amount of Credit Payment Submitted to 

IRS on Form 8038-CP*

Actual Credit Payment Received

Virginia Resources Authority Taxable Qualified Energy Conservation Revenue Bond, (VirginiaSAVES Green Community Program - Russell County Projects) Series 2017 (Direct Pay)

Debt Service Schedule

Applicable Credit Rate

Annual Rate

Published
Total Projected Credit Payment (3)

For Servicing Period Ending 03/31/19

Actual Sequestration 

Rate 

Average Principal Payment

Scheduled Debt Payments

Projected Credit Payment Remaining (3)

Actual Credit Payment Received by Russell into 

Custody Account

Projected Credit Payment 

Recv'd by Russell in Custody 

Acct

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



Draft Amortization Schedule - Taxable Direct Pay QECB :::W..Etion ?;~ 
Par Amount of QECBs 5,637,000.00 

Taxable QECBs Interest Rate 4.60% 

Federal Tax Credit Rate (as of 03/17/2017) 4.59% 
70% Federal Tax Credit Rate 3.21% 

Net Effective Rate 1.39% 

Final Maturity (yrs.) 19.43 
Average Life (yrs.) 11.21 
Closing/Funding Date 4/27/17 

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable Treasury Net Payment 
Pmt. Year Payment Payment Interest Principal Outstanding Subsidy After 
No. No. Date Amount Portion Portion Balance Amount Subsid~ 

1 1 10/1/2017 339,890.92 110,923.63 228,967.29 5,408,032.71 72,209.26 267,681.66 
2 2 10/1/2018 428,441.07 248,769.50 179,671.56 5,228,361.15 161,944.40 266,496.66 
3 3 10/1/2019 432,139.77 240,504.61 191,635.16 5,036, 725.99 156,564.11 275,575.66 
4 4 10/1/2020 435,754.23 231,689. 40 204,064.83 4,832,661.16 150,825.57 284,928.66 
5 5 10/1/2021 439,275.47 222,302.41 216,973.06 4,615,688.10 144,714.81 294,560.66 
6 6 10/1/2022 442,699.18 212,321.65 230,377.53 4,385,310.57 138,217.52 304,481.66 
7 7 10/1/2023 446,018.49 201,724.29 244,294.20 4,141,016.37 131,318.83 314,699.66 
8 8 10/1/2024 449,229.06 190,486.75 258,742.31 3,882,274.06 124,003.40 325,225.66 
9 9 10/1/2025 452,322.98 178,584.61 273,738.37 3,608,535.68 116,255.32 336,067.66 
10 10 1011/2026 455,291.84 165,992.64 289,299.20 3,319,236.49 108,058.18 347,233.66 
11 11 10/1/2027 411,844.73 152,684.88 259,159.85 3,060,076.63 99,395.07 312,449.66 
12 12 1011/2028 414,543.15 140,763.53 273,779.62 2,786,297.01 91,634.48 322,908.66 
13 13 10/1/2029 417,1 15.77 128,169.66 288,946.1 1 2,497,350.90 83,436.11 333,679.66 
14 14 10/1/2030 419,558.23 114,878.14 304,680.09 2,192,670.81 74,783.57 344,774.66 
15 15 10/1/2031 421,862.54 100,862.86 320,999.68 1,871,671.1 3 65,659.88 356,202.66 
16 16 10/1/2032 424,020.15 86,096.87 337,923.28 1,533,747.85 56,047.49 367,972.66 
17 17 1011/2033 426,024.99 70,552.40 355,472.59 1, 178,275.26 45,928.32 380,096.66 
18 18 10/1/2034 427,868.30 54,200.66 373,667.64 804,607.62 35,283.64 392,584.66 
19 19 10/1/2035 429,540.77 37,01 1.95 392,528.82 412,078.80 24,094.10 405,446.66 
20 20 10/1/2036 431,034.43 18,955.62 412,078.80 (0.00) 12,339.77 418,694.66 

101112036 8,544,476.07 2,907,476.07 5,637,000.00 1,892,713.83 6,651, 762.24 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight



SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise

https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/swva-economic-forum/[3/26/2019 9:32:20 AM]

SWVA Economic Forum

TECHNOLOGY LEADS THE 2019 SWVA

ECONOMIC FORUM

Join us on May 15th!



ABOUT UVA-WISE / ADMINISTRATION & SERVICES / OFFICE OF ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT & ENGAGEMENT / SWVA ECONOMIC FORUM



https://www.uvawise.edu/
https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/
https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/
https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/
https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/


SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise

https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/swva-economic-forum/[3/26/2019 9:32:20 AM]

THE FORUM ANNOUNCES
MORNING KEYNOTE
SPEAKERS

 

Wendy and Dario Marquez of Wize Solutions will open the Forum as

the morning keynote speakers.

J. Wendy Marquez is Founder and President of Wize Solutions, an IT

company which focuses on creating sustainable high tech jobs in

rural areas of Virginia through partnerships with local community

colleges and national remote-based employers. Prior to forming Wize

Solutions in 2017, Wendy served for over a decade as President of

Onyx Media Group, a film production company which won several

prestigious awards under her leadership.

Dario Marquez began his professional career as a member of the

United States Secret Service, serving under the Administrations of

Presidents Nixon, Ford and Carter. In 1979, Mr. Marquez left the

Secret Service to establish MVM, Inc. MVM’s initial focus was in

security personnel management, security training, executive

protection, criminal and civil investigations, technical security, and

security risk assessments.  Subsequently MVM  expanded its

services to include IT management, network administration, system

security, system analysis and development of proprietary IT

solutions tailored to the specific needs of its customers. Under Mr.

Marquez’s leadership, MVM grew to become one of the largest

companies in the country, currently employing over 2,400 security

professionals worldwide.

 

The 2019 SWVA Economic Forum

will be In The Zone this year!

______________

The Small Business Zone will feature exhibitors from

Opportunity SWVA and other small business financing

and assistance services.

 

Our Technology Zone will feature exhibitors from education,

businesses and services showcasing technology in the region.

If you would like more information or are interested in

exhibiting, contact Rachel Patton at:  r.patton@swvaworks.com

Come early or catch them on your break!

mailto:r.patton@swvaworks.com


SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise

https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/swva-economic-forum/[3/26/2019 9:32:20 AM]

GET ENGAGED!

Get updates! Visit, Like & Share our

Facebook Page

HAVE A CREATIVE SOLUTION FOR SWVA?

Do you have a creative solution for SWVA?

We would love to hear it!! Opportunities to

present the best ideas for the region will be

available. Start the Conversation!

_________________________________________

For more information about Global Growth Advisors, LLC

Read more about their recent tech project,  BioIQ

https://www.globalgrowthadv.com/
https://www.globalgrowthadv.com/news


SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise

https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/swva-economic-forum/[3/26/2019 9:32:20 AM]

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND GROWTH TOP

TOPICS AT SWVA ECONOMIC FORUM

2018 SWVA ECONOMIC FORUM DRAWS A

CROWD

KEYNOTE SPEAKER

ANNOUNCED!

The SWVA Economic Forum is pleased to announce this year’s

keynote speaker:  Cheryl Cran!

Make plans to join us on Thursday, May 17 to enjoy Cheryl’s

keynote presentation:  The Future of Work is Now! Are You

Ready?

“Cheryl Cran is on a mission—she challenges leaders to strive for higher levels of ‘leadership

mastery’ and provides tools, resources and processes to help leaders evolve, lead change and

be ready for the Future of Work Now.”

Cheryl is an award-winning international consultant, best-selling author and highly sought-after

speaker. She has worked in multiple industries, with hundreds of clients and thousands of

leaders worldwide. Her research and thought leadership on the Future of Work and Change

Leadership have been featured in CNBC, Huffington Post, Metro New York, Readers Digest,

Financial Post, Fox, Entrepreneur magazine and more. Cheryl is the founder of Evolutionary

Leadership Network, an online leadership training portal, and co-founder of Leadership Skills

for Kids, a gamified app that teaches fundamental leadership skills.

Cheryl’s philosophy and her mission is to inspire and guide evolutionary change leaders to

upgrade their operating systems to create the future workplace today. The future workplace

Cheryl envisions is one of shared leadership, innovative collaboration and where everyone is

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BCCorrVdw5o


SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise

https://www.uvawise.edu/uva-wise/administration-services/office-economic-development/swva-economic-forum/[3/26/2019 9:32:20 AM]

HERE IS YOUR
OPPORTUNITY!

 

Southwest

Virginia

Supports

Entrepreneurs

BE PART OF THE

LAUNCH: 

We launch at the 2018

Southwest Virginia Economic Forum on May 17 with our first

cohort of fundable businesses. 

We have a great story to tell in Southwest Virginia. Tell the

world about your Southwest Virginia Opportunity, and grow

your business. 

Download our flyer for more information.

BEYOND BORDERS -
PANEL DISCUSSION

Moderated by John Smolak,
Economic Development
Director of American Electric
Power

Panelists:

Brad Hall, Vice President, American Electric Power,

Eastern KY Region

Jina Belcher, CBO, Coalfield Development, Wayne, WV,

Southern  WV

Jack Meadows, Director of Planning and Community

Development, Siler City, NC

Michael Griffith, Security Federal Savings Bank,

McMinnville, TN

consistently adding value for employees and customers.

  

~ THANK YOU~

http://www.opportunityswva.org/kiva/
http://www.opportunityswva.org/kiva/
http://www.opportunityswva.org/kiva/
http://www.opportunityswva.org/kiva/
http://www.opportunityswva.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/KIVA20FLYER2028129.pdf
https://www.uvawise.edu/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Breakout-Sessions-1.pdf
https://www.uvawise.edu/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Creative-Solutions-Topics.pdf














 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Harry Ferguson  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

RESOLUTION 

 

APPROVAL OF SECONDARY HIGHWAY SIX-YEAR PLAN (2019/20 THROUGH 2025/26) 

 AND CONSTRUCTION PRIORITY LIST (2019/20) 

RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 33.1-23 and 33.1-23.4 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, provides 
the opportunity for each county to work with the Virginia Department of Transportation in developing a 
Secondary Six-Year Road Plan, and 

WHEREAS, this Board had previously agreed to assist in the preparation of this Plan, in 
accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation policies and procedures, and participated in a 
public hearing on the proposed Plan (2018/19 through 2024/25) as well as the Construction Priority List 
(2019/20) on May 6, 2019, after duly advertised so that all citizens of the County had the opportunity to 
participate in said hearing and to make comments and recommendations concerning the proposed Plan 
and Priority List, and 

WHEREAS, John R. Watson, Residency Administrator, Virginia Department of Transportation, 
appeared before the Board and recommended approval of the Six-Year Plan for Secondary Roads (2019/20 
through 2025/26) and the Construction Priority List (2019/20) for Russell County, Virginia.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, Virginia 
that since said Plan appears to be in the best interests of the Secondary Road System in Russell County 
and of the citizens residing on the Secondary System, said Secondary Six-Year Plan (2019/20 through 
2025/26) and Construction Priority List (2019/20) are hereby approved as presented at the public hearing. 

DONE this the 6th day of May,2019. 

Recorded Vote        

Moved By:  ________________________ 

Seconded By:  ______________________ 

Yeas:  ____________________________        

Nays:               Rebecca Dye, Chairperson   

 



FY2020 FY2025

$249,377 $0

$0 $0

$79,486 $79,486

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $311,783

$328,863 $391,269

Secondary System
Russell County

Construction Program
Estimated Allocations

Fund FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 Total

CTB Formula - Unpaved State $0 $0 $0 $0 $249,377

Secondary Unpaved Roads $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TeleFee $79,486 $79,486 $79,486 $79,486 $476,916

Residue Parcels $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

STP Converted from IM $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal STP - Bond Match $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Formula STP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

MG Formula $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BR Formula $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other State Match $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

State Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal STP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

District Grant - Unpaved $350,146 $255,485 $337,189 $311,783 $1,566,386

Total $429,632 $334,971 $416,675 $391,269 $2,292,679

County Administrator Date

Board Approval Date:

Residency Administrator Date

Page 1 of 3 



Route Previous Additional Traffic Count

PPMS ID Funding Funding Scope of Work

Accomplishment Required FHWA #

Type of Funds SSYP Funding 2020-21 2023-24 Comments

Type of Project Other Funding

Priority #  Total

Rt.0698 Sykes Drive PE $0  

109162 0698083964 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

S 1 Mi. W. Rte. 646 Total $248,750 $248,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

2.2 Mi. W. Rte. 646

2.03 1.2  

Rt.0682 Brick Church Circle PE $0  

109166 0682083966 RW $0  $123,811 $0 $0 $0 $0

S Rte. 65 Total $250,000 $126,189 $123,811 $123,811 $0 $0 $0

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

1.0 Mi. N. Rte. 65

2.01 1.0  

Rt.0834 Jackie Dye Road PE $0  

109168 0834083967 RW $0  $205,052 $61,956 $0 $0 $0

S Rte. 632 Total $275,000 $7,992 $267,008 $205,052 $61,956 $0 $0

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

End State Maint. 

2.02 0.7  

Rt.0779 Davis Hankins Lane PE $0  

109170 0779083968 RW $0  $0 $90,000 $0 $0 $0

S Rte. 603 Total $90,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000 $0 $0

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

End State Maint. 

2.03 0.3  

Rt.0679 Thomas Warner Bridge Rd PE $0  

110904 0679083P72 RW $0  $0 $277,676 $297,324 $0 $0

1.50 Miles West Rte. 613 Total $575,000 $0 $575,000 $0 $277,676 $0 $0

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

Rte. 613

2.04 1.5  

District: Bristol SECONDARY SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM (in dollars)
County: Russell County

Board Approval Date: 2020-21 through 2024-25
Road Name Estimated Cost PROJECTED FISCAL YEAR ALLOCATIONS

Project #

Description

FROM 2019-20 2021-22 2022-23 2024-25

TO

Length

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 698 Blade, Ditch and Surface-
treat

CON $248,750  $0 $0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0 $0

17006

 

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 682 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $250,000  $0 $0

$0$0

$0 $0 $0 $0

17006

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 834 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $275,000  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

17006

$0 $0 $0

$0

$0 $0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 779 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $90,000  $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

17006

17006

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 679 (Thomas Warner Bridge 
Rd) Rural Rustic.

CON $575,000  $0

$297,324 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Page 2 of 3 



Rt.0679 Tumbez Hollow PE $0  

113035 679083 RW $0  $0 $0 $37,647 $416,675 $45,678

Rte. 613 Total $500,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $416,675 $45,678

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

Rte. 824

2.05 0.9  

Rt.0606 Blanch Davis PE $0  

T- 609083 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $345,591

Rte. 609 Total $500,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $345,591

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

1.3 Mi. S. Rte. 609

2.06 1.3  

Rt.0678 Lower Copper Creek PE $0  

T- 678083 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Rte. 606   Total $500,000 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

State forces/Hired 
equip CN Only

1 Mi. E. Rte. 606

2.07 1.0  

$0 $0

17006

$37,647 $0

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 679  - Blade, Ditch and pave CON $500,000  $0 $0 $0 $0

$154,409

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 606  - Blade, Ditch and pave CON $500,000  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

17006

$0 $154,409

$236,860

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 678  - Blade, Ditch and pave CON $500,000  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

17006

$0 $236,860

Page 3 of 3 

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight

Lonzo Lester
Highlight


































































































































































































	Aknowledgements.pdf
	Meeting:    5/6/19    6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 5/6/19     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 5/6/19           6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Board Appointments.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Members.

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 5/6/19      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 5/6/19     6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s): Various

	SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise.pdf
	uvawise.edu
	SWVA Economic Forum at UVa-Wise


	RussellCountyBoardOfSupervisors.pdf
	Castlewood High School 
	(276) 762-9449 Phone
	Home of the Castlewood Blue Devils


	Russell_FY20.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet2

	Russell_FY20.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet2




